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KEY COMPANY INFORMATION

Sunset Hotel Limited (“SHL”, “The Company™) was incorporated under the Kenya Companies Act
(Cap 486) in 1976 with shareholders of SHL being Tourism Finance Corporation (TFC, formerly
Kenya Tourist Development Corporation (KTDC) and Kisumu County (formerly Kisumu Municipal
Council). TFC is the majority shareholder in SHL with a direct controlling stake of 95.4% shares
with Kisumu County shareholding of 4.6%. TFC shareholding has since been transferred to Kenya
Development Corporation (KDC) effective 2" July 2021 vial Legal Notice No.113 pursuant to the
Kenya Development Corporation Limited vesting order, 2021 published by the Cabinet Secretary for
National Planning. From the management perspective, SHL is classified as a Commercial State
Corporation by virtue of being a subsidiary of KDC. The shareholders through the Directors are
responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the Hotel.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is operation of the hotel facility mainly focusing on
provision of accommodation and conference facilities.

QOur Vision

To be the preferred choice for customers positioned to providing personahzed diversified and
exceptional service.

QOur Mission

To continuously create value in every encounter with customers, owners and associates as we
provide a choice of excellent hospitality products that offer good value for money while assuring
a good return to shareholders and inspiration to employees through sustainable use of
environmental resources and corporate social responsibility.

Directors

1. Mr.Christopher Huka | Director | Chairperson

2. Ms. Judith Omachar Director | Appointed August 2021
3, Mr. Edward Gitau Director | Appointed August 2021

CECM, Tourism, Arts, Culture & Sports, Kisumu
County

5. Ms. Lucy Achieng Alai | Director | CECM, Finance and Planning, Kisumu County

Mr. George Okongo Director
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Corporate secretary

Mr. John Karia

Kenya Development Corporation Ltd
th

Uchumi House, 17 Floor

P O Box 12665-00100
Nairobi

Email: info@kdc.go.ke

e

Registered Office

Sunset Hotel Limited Aput lane,
Impala walk

P. O. Box 215-40100

Kisumu Kenya

Tel. (254)057-2023482, 2021490

Email: info(@sunsethotel.co.ke
Website: www.sunsethotel.co.ke
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“orporate Headquarters
Kenya Development Corporation

Uchumi House, 17lh Floor
Agha Khan Walk

P O Box 12665-00100
Nairobi

Corporate Contacts
Telephone: +254 20 2229213
E-Mail: info@kdec.go.ke
Website: www.kdc.go.ke

Corporate Bankers

1. National Bank of Kenya Limited
Oginga Odinga Street
P.O Box 1152-40100
Kisumu

2. Kenya Commercial Bank
Oginga Odinga Street
P.O Box 17-40100
Kisumu

Independent Auditors

Auditor General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GOP 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Advisers

1. The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR

Christopher Huka
(Chairperson)

KEY PROFESSIONAL/
ACADEMIC
QUALIFICATIONS

WORK EXPERIENCE

Business Administration

Management from the
University of Nairobi,

from Moi University,
Diploma in Executive
Coaching; Academy of
Executive Coaching — UK,
Higher National Diploma:

and advanced Certificate in
Strategic HR Management,
Cornell University — USA.

Mr. Huka holds a Master of

degree in Human Resources

Bachelor of Education degree

HRM from Institute of Human
Resource Management, Kenya

Mr. Huka, is the Interim Director
General of Kenya Development
Corporation (KDC) and a Board
Member. He was appointed on 17th May.
2021.

o e

With a long career in the private and
public sectors, working at senior
executive level Mr Huka has an
extensive work experience of over 25
years in Banking, Oil & Gas sectors.
Presently, he is the Interim Director
General at KDC mandated to manage the
merger and transition of TFC, IDB
Capital and ICDC into a single
development finance institution entity.

Previously he has held senior executive
positions both in the public and private
sector. Prior to this appointment he
served as the Senior Technical Advisor
to the Cabinet Secretary, National
Treasury and Planning of the Republic of
Kenya. He has served at Dubai Islamic
Bank UAE, as Human Resource &
Administration Director and Senior
Business Partner at Barclays Bank of
Kenya. Before joining Barclays, he
worked in three senior managerial
positions as Country Human Resources
at Chevron (K) Ltd, (formerly Caltex),
Human Resources Officer at Shell
(K)Ltd and Senior Human Resources
Officer at Post Bank.
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Judith Omachar

Mrs Omachar holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree
(Accounting Option) from the
University of Nairobi and is a
Certified Public Accountant
(CPA-K) and is a member of
ICPAK.

Mrs. Judith Omachar is the Deputy
Director Business Development and
Advisory.

She has over 20 years™ experience in
investments including deal origination.
appraisal and portfolio management
gained at IDB Capital Limited where
she was working as the Manager
Credit.

Edward Gitau

He holds a bachelor’s degree
in Economics and Statistics

from the University of
Nairobi. He is a certified
investments and finance

analyst (CIFA).

[nvestment Manager - Agro-
processing, Energy and
Education division since July 2017,

He held the position of Credit Manager
from May 2014. He has 25 years’
experience in finance analysis,
investment appraisal. enterprise
valuations and investment monitoring.
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Ms. Achie Ojany- Alai

She holds an MA in
Marketing Management from
Kingston Business University,
London.

CECM, Tourism, Arts,
Sports, Kisumu County.
She has spent the last 23 years working
in Europe and the Middle East. Prior to
joining the County of Kisumu. She is
also serves as the National Caucus
Chair bringing together all the 47
Tourism and Wildlife County Ministers
under the patronage of Council of
Governors. Achie Ojany - Alai has also
been appointed to the planning
committee for upcoming Afficities
Global Summit to be hosted in Kisumu,
Kenya in April 2022.

A seasoned marketer having worked in
top advertising agencies worldwide-
McCann Erickson Kenya and London,
Gillette International, London.
Conference moderator-World Urban
Forum, Poland in June 2022.

Culture &

Mr. George Okongo

He holds a Masters Degree in
Development Studies (IDS),
University of Sussex and
Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the
University of Dar es Salaam.
He is also a graduate of the
Oxford Leadership
Development Programme,
Said Business School,
University of Oxford and
holds a postgraduate
certificate in Public Policy
Analysis from the London
School of Economics (LSE).

George is the CECM, Finance and
Economic Planning, County
Government of Kisumu. Prior to
Joining the County Government, Mr
Okongo served in various senior policy
analysis and programme management
roles in international research and
development organizations. He was
Development Manager at the African
Population and Health Research Centre
(APHRC) and Senior Progrmamme
Manager at the International Institute
for  Democracy and  Electoral
Assistance (International IDEA).
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He is the Company Secretary. John is
S—— an Advocate of the High Court of

Mr. John holds a Master Kenya and a Certified Secretary. He is
degree in Law (LLM) from an active Member of the Law Society
the University of Exeter (UK), | of Kenya, the Institute of Certified
a Postgraduate Diploma in Public Secretaries of Kenya and an
Law from the Kenya School Associate Member of the Chartered
of Law and a Bachelor of Institute of Arbitrators (Kenya Branch).
Laws degree (LLB) from John is a seasoned legal and
University of Nairobi. governance professional with wide and

varied experience gained in the
financial services industry and has
previously worked for Kenindia
Assurance Co. Ltd and the
Laptrust/CPF Group where he was the
Legal Services Manager.

Vil



SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the financial year ending 30 June 2022

MANAGEMENT TEAM
Accountant
Holds a Bachelor
\ of Commerce

(B.COM) Finance,
CPA(K) &
Diploma in
Accounting

Over 16 years’
experience

Risper Chichole

viil
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On behalf of my fellow
Board Members, the
Management and myself |
hereby present to you
Financial Statements of
Sunset Hotel Ltd for the

Financial Year

2021/2022.

[ am pleased to report that despite the
turbulence witnessed in the industry during
the year as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic
and inflation, the hotel defied all odds and
posted a relatively impressive performance
for the second time in a row. For a number of
years, the performance of the Hotel has been
wanting; with the poor performance being
attributable to a number of factors inter alia
the downturn of the tourism sector in the
country, the state of the facility and the
increase in the number of high-end facilities
within Kisumu County that provided stiff
competition for the hotel.

In the Year under review the hotel posted a
profit of Kshs. 9.19 Million against the
expected Profit of Kshs. 4.33 Million; thus
further reducing the accumulated losses to
Kshs. 163.78 Million.

Despite the evident improvement, it is not
lost to the board the need to strategically
reposition the hotel. The hotel’s improvement

X

on the backdrop of the harsh environment
under which it operated during the period
serves to underscore the huge potential that
this iconic hotel possesses. With continued
concerted efforts, the hotel should be able to
become self-sufficient as we continue to
explore means and ways of putting it back on
track and forestalling “the accumulation of
further  losses and safeguarding  the
investment of the shareholders.

The current Board has shown a lot of
goodwill and I believe this will go a long way
in assisting the hotel in making the
revolutionary change required to salvage it as
it can already be seen. I would like to record
my sincere gratitude to the Board for their
invaluable support, commitment and
dedication which has helped steer the hotel’s
strategic thinking to new altitudes.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Management & Staff I would like to express
my sincere gratitude to our customers for
their patronage over the Years and look
forward to their continued support in future.
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REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

On behalf of management of
Sunset Hotel Limited, 1 am
pleased to present to you the
Annual Report and
Financial Statements of the
company for the year ended
30" June 2022.

The upsurge of new hotels in the county of
Kisumu has created a serious scramble for clients
resulting in serious competition that is certainly
good for the industry.

On the flipside, this entry of new hotels has
‘disadvantaged’ the old hotels and has created a
challenge that the old hotels must quickly address
and deal with in order to remain competitive and
relevant; Sunset Hotel being no exception.

Alive to that fact, the management set out to
leverage on its key strengths to make up for the
main weakness which remains the dilapidated
state of the hotel.

The hotel’s key strength being the brand name
built over the years. Sunset is undoubtedly a
house hold name in the region and industry at
large. The hotel’s strategic location also gives it
an edge over the competitors. The hotel mainly
focused/focuses on quality service delivery.

During the year 2022, the hotel achieved a net
turnover of Kshs 59 million (2021: Kshs 51
million) representing an increase of 14 % and a
profit of Kshs. 9.19 million (2021: Kshs 10.08
million) thus 9% decrease. The drop being
mainly occasioned by the high cost of goods and

most specifically the cost of sales during the
period under review. The worldwide economic
turmoil did not spare the hotel.

The management remains focused on the
refurbishment agenda and it remains hopeful
that the agenda will be actualized sooner
than later. It is envisaged that more efforts
will be direeted™ towards
operational efficiency and

increasing
implementing
strategies such as increasing accommodation
capacity, marketing, advertising  and
promotions that are directed towards securing
more business.

Finally, on behalf of management and staff of
Sunset Hotel Ltd, I wish to express our
sincere appreciation to the Board of directors
for their committed support during the year
ended 30™ June 2022. 1 equally wish to
express my gratitude to the shareholders;
National Government and the County
Government of Kisumu, customers and other
valuable stakeholders for their support. The
future looks brighter.

S~

Risper Chichole
Ag. General Manager
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Sunset Hotel has four main strategic issues within the current Strategic Plan for the FY 2019- FY
2023. These strategic issues are as follows:

I. Reinforcement of trust and recognition for Sunset Hotel in the industry

2. Increasing sales revenue.
3. Reinvestment and payment of dividends to shareholders
4. Human Resource Development and Management

Sunset Hotel develops its annual work plans based on the above four Issues. Assessment of the
Board’s performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The hotel partly
achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its strategic issues, as indicated

in below:
Strategic Objective Key Activities Achievements
Pillar/Theme/Issues Performance
Indicators
Reinforcement of trust To reinforce Customer e Renovation and
and recognition for the hotel’s loyalty and refurbishing of | Process of sourcing
Sunset Hotel in the position in the | maximized hotel rooms to | for refurbishment
industry market as a profits modern standards. | funds initiated and in
recognized e Rebranding the | progress with
and trusted hotel. remarkable
hotel e Implement use of improvements already
ICT in hotel | having been done with
recognition and | internally generated
image funds.
improvement.

Increasing sales
revenue.

To achieve a
20% growth
rate in sales
for the next 5
years in order
to enhance
and sustain
financial
resources for
Sunset Hotel.

Increased sales
and patronage

e Diversification of
services and
products.

e Focuson
conference tourism
to attain average
space occupancy
of 75%.

e Investment in
cottages and tents

¢ Implement proper
financial control

Revenue target
surpassed by 14%
while profit was over
and above the budget
by 112%.

X1
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systems
Continual
improvement of
services, products
and environment
Pay debts on time
Mobilize resources
from external
sources

Improve efficiency...
and effectiveness

of resource
utilization.

Reinvestment and

To achieve a

Declaration of

Renovation and

payment of dividends to | 20% growth dividends and refurbishment of Projects to improve
shareholders rate in the plough backs the property the hotel from
levels of i) Diversification of internally generated
profits services and have been
sufficient to products implemented as
yield returns iii) Reduction of outsourced funds are
to operating costs awaited for major
shareholders iv) Focus on quality areas. Profitability
service and was also achieved.
customers
satisfaction
Human Resource | To attract, Improved i) Developing a
Development and | develop and Customer Human Resource HR instruments
Management retain service, Manual developed and
competent and | Increased ii) Upgrading skills in | approved; for
motivated productivity the workforce implementation in a
staff iii) Improving the work | phased manner. Work
environment environment generally
iv) Rationalizing staff | improved.

capacity

xii
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'ORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance comprises the rules, practices and processes by which the company is

directed and controlled. It also provides the framework for attaining the company’s objectives. The
Board of Directors has embraced Governance as the mode of engagement and interaction between

the Corporation’s Board, Management, Stakeholders and Regulators for the sustainable benefit of
the hotel.

Sunset Hotel Ltd is committed to realiziné profits and growth while complying with all legal
Requirements and maintaining business ethics. The above are realized through:

a)

b)

Board of Directors

The Board provides leadership of the Company with the framework that upholds the core values
underpinning good Corporate Governance.

The board’s duties and responsibilities include;

. Setting the Strategic Direction of the hotel and putting in place appropriate
policies, systems and structures for their successful implementation;

. Establishing and maintaining the hotel’s overall systems of planning, accounting
and internal controls that facilitate prudent risk management;

B Setting policy guidelines for management and ensuring competent management of
the business including selection, supervision, and remuneration of Senior
Management

« Ensuring the business of the hotel is conducted in compliance with relevant laws

and regulations
. Monitoring the hotel’s performance and reporting this to the shareholders.

There exists a formal procedure to the appointment of directors. Key elements such a conflict of
interests and multiple directorships are considered during this exercise. Towards the end, the
company has consistently formulated successive 5 years strategic plan.

Board Composition

The Board believes that to achieve good corporate governance, there is need for strong presence of
the non- executive directors in the Board. During the year under review, the Board had five
Directors of all whom were non-executive Directors. The General Manager attended the Board
meetings in his capacity as General Manager.

Xiii
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The Board Chairman has the overall responsibility of leading the Board. He oversees the operations and

effectiveness of the Board and ensures that the Boards® discussions are conducted in a manner that \
promotes open participation.

The Directors who held office during the year under review is as listed under the Board of Directors;
afore section in this report.

The Corporation Secretary being the custodian of corporate governance within the entity works closely
with the Board and the Hotels Management. In this regard, the Corporation Secretary facilitates all
Directors to have full and timely access to all relevant information, ensures that the correct board

procedures are followed and advises the Board on all Corporate Governance matters and prevailing
statutory requirements.

¢) Board Meetings

The Board schedule of meetings is prepared annually in advance. The Board holds its regular
meetings at least once every three (3) months and special meetings may be called when necessary.

During the year, the board held a total of four (4) meetings; all of which were regular board
meetings.

The time, date, venue and Agenda of the meeting are communicated in advance. Attendance of the
Board Members to full Board meeting, Special Board meeting over the year is set as below:

: Regular | Special Total
Name Details = - =
Meeting Meeting | Meetings

1 | Achie Alai Alternate to the Governor 3 . 3
2 | John Karia Company Secretary 4 - 4
3 | Christopher Huka | Director General-KDC 4 - 4
4 | Edward Gitau Director 4 - 4
5 | George Okongo Alternate to the Governor 2 - 2
6 | Judith Omachar Director A4 - 4

d) Company Policy on Directors Remuneration
Company Directors are entitled to sitting allowances for each Board Meeting. Directors are entitled to
transport and meal allowance when attending Board Meetings outside their regular areas of residence.

These are payable at the following rates:-

Xiv
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Directors Sitting | Lunch Air ticket Subsistence
74 e Allowance Per Allowance per director Claim
Sitting Per Sitting
Board Chairman 20,000 2,000 18,200
As per travel
Directors 20,000 2,000 18,200

e¢) General Terms of Service
Directors serve a 3 years term service from the date they are appointed into office. They are eligible for
re-appointment for one second term of 3 years.

f) Conflict of Interest

The Board Members are required to make disclosures of any transaction in which they have interest and
which would constitute a conflict of interest and abstain from voting when such matters are being
considered.

XV
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operational and Financial Performance

The day to day running of the business of Sunset Hotel Ltd is delegated by the Board to the Hotel
General manager who implements Board decisions in a manner that adds value to the hotel.

a) Revenue/Profitability

During the year under review, the hotel achieved a net turnover of Kshs 59 million against a budget
of Kshs 52 million. This represented a favorable variance of 14%. Net profit stood at Kshs. 9.19

million against the projected profit of Kshs.4.33 million as shown below. The target for the year
under review was therefore achieved.

Particulars Budgeted Actuals Variance if]a:l'igaence Remark
2021-2022 | 2021-2022 | 2021-2022 | 2021-2022
Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Sales 52,189,889 | 59,308,372 7,118,483 14% | F
Other Income - - - =
Total Revenues 52,189,889 59,308,372 7,118,483 14% | F
Cost of sales 8,836,968 | 15,773,129 | -6,936,161 -78% | U
Gross Profit 43,352,921 | 43,535,243 182,322 0% | F
EXPENSES
Administration Costs 28,325,322 | 26,020,476 2,304,846 8% | F
Selling and distribution Costs 908,747 423,182 485,565 53% | F
Depreciation Costs 3,230,477 2,197,378 1,033,099 32% | F
Total Operating expenses 32,464,546 | 28,641,036 3,465,071 14% | F
Operating Profit/(Loss) 10,888,375 | 14,894,207 4,005,832 37% | F
Finance Costs 6,556,296 5,699,076 857,220 13% | F
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 4,332,079 9,195,131 4,863,052 112% | F
Income tax expenses (credit) - - - - |-
et el 4332079 | 9,195,131 | 4,863,052 112% | F

Revenue center’s performance:

XV1
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I'he Hotel's current amenities include; 50 standard rooms with 100 bed capacity, restaurant, lounge
bar, pool bar, swimming pool and conference facilities. The respective centers performed as below:

Revenue Centre Amount
Accommodation 8,776,680 1) Food Residents -Food sales from resident/in-house guests
Food - Residents 5,509,407
Food - Casuals 30,153,297 2)Food Casuals-Food sales from seminars and walk-in clients
Drinks 10,272,542
Tobacco 19,660 |  3)Other Income-This includes revenue from hall hire,
Laundry 65,754 stationery, video/photo session, ground hire etc
Swimming Pool 1,816,532
Other Income 2,694,500
Total 59,308,372
REVENUE CENTRES
Swimming Pool
3%
Laundiy Other Income
Tobacco

Food -
Residents
9%

X Vil
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Room and bed occupancy for the period was as below:

Particulars Budget
Actual Budgeted Full Capacity Achieved
Room Occupancy % 37% 41% 100% 90%
Bed Occupancy % 23% 22% 100% 105%
Number of Rooms Occupied 5,583 7.387 9125 76%
Number of Beds Occupied (Guests) 6,800 7,992 18,250 85%
Average Rate - Room 1,572 2,053 | "% 4000 77%
Average Rate - Bed 1,291 1,884 2,000 69%

The Hotel’s key strength is its strategic location and ownership structure with the major challenges
being its poor state of facility, high cost of operations and increased competition. The visible decline
in sales over the years is due to stiff competition which has hit the Hotel hard thus calling for tough
decisions to be made for the hotel to remain a float.

However, the management strongly believes that the Hotel has immense potential which if tapped
through carefully thought out turn around strategies will certainly reclaim the Hotel’s fast fading
glory; this is already underway with discussions between the management, the
directors/shareholders regarding the same having commenced. There are also deliberate efforts to
use the internally generated funds to uplift the status of the hotel as and where possible.

As one of the turnaround strategies, the hotel declared all staff redundant in May 2019 and paid off
their dues with funds borrowed from the shareholders. This certainly eased the burden of salaries on
the hotel and it was expected that going forward the hotel would be able to breakeven. The hotel has
since then endeavored to build on the gains previously made to continually improve its performance
despite a myriad of challenges. The hotel’s performance has for the last two years been relatively
impressive with the year under review being no exception. in the year under review the hotel
surpassed both the revenue and profit targets. This is on the backdrop of perennial loss making by

the hotel in the past. The performance clearly points to the overall hotel’s potential in the event ofa
facelift.

b) Administration Costs
The overall vote was within the budget with a favorable variance of 8%.

¢) Finance Costs
This relates to Interest on loans disbursed to the hotel by TFC at an interest rate of 11%.

Xviii
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d) Depreciation
Most of the Hotel’s assets are fully depreciated. It had been hoped that some of them would be
replaced in the current financial year. However, that is yet to be effected thus the variance.

e) Liquidity Position

As a result ‘of the above adverse revenue variance and general dismal performance over time, the
Hotel has continued to default on meeting its obligations as and when they fall due. However, with
the restructuring measures having been put in place, the liquidity position of the hotel has improved

and the hotel is now able to meet its current obligations while offsetting the previous outstanding
liabilities.

f) Compliance with Statutory Requirements

Sunset Hotel is fully compliant with all the relevant statutory requirements. The required returns are
filed as and when due. However, the hotel has in the past faced serious financial constraints which
made the hotel to lag behind on making remittances to the relevant organs e.g KRA and NSSF. The
hotel has since cleared the NSSF principal arrears save for the penalty for which they have come up

with an agreed payment plan. The hotel has also engaged KRA and agreed on a payment plan for
the tax arrears.

g¢) Key Projects and Investment Decisions Implemented by the Entity
Save for the capital expenditure outlined in the cashflow, due to the current financial situation, the
hotel has no major projects but hopes to initiate when the cash flows allow.

h) Financial Probity and Serious Governance

There is no major financial improbity reported by internal audit, external audit or other national
government agencies providing oversight, neither are there serious governance issues among the
board or member of the board and top management including conflict of interest.

i) Five-year performance

Save for the last two years, the hotel’s performance has been on a downward trend due to its
dilapidated state, having been built 40 years ago and with no meaningful refurbishment in between.
The hotel is in dire need of a facelift in order to bring back its lost glory. As aforementioned, the
hotel’s potential cannot be underestimated.

X1X
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The hotel’s comparative performance over the last five years is as follows:

Year Revenue Profit

2022 59,308,372 9,195,131
2021 50,159,565 10,087,234
2020 18,546,294 -9,945,386
2019 36,011,363 -33.749,192
2018 34,089,815 -21,901,756
2017 42,242,826 -27,700,389

The above performance is graphically shown as below:

Revenue/profit(Loss)
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), Environmental Conservation and Sustainability means
corporate culture for Sunset Hotel, a culture which holds the Company’s responsibility not only for
making profit, but also for the conditions under which profits are made. Finding a balance between
financial successes, social responsibility and protecting the environment is a fundamental approach
that lies at. the heart of Sunset Hotel corporate culture and is reflected in our corporate values.
Below is an outline of the organization’s policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i) Sustainability strateg)_f and profile

Sustainability is a key pillar of our company strategy and has always played a fundamental

role within our business. We continue to strive to combine a powerful business sense and a

strong sense of social responsibility towards our stakeholders which has over decades of

existence been created, managed and sustained through long-term relationships, marked by

mutual respect and trust.

ii) Environmental performance

From Environmental perspective, our guiding principles and approach has continued to evolve in an
ethical manner through various partnerships so as to widen our footprint with an increased emphasis
on quality, value addition and visible measures of impact and success within the ecosystem and
communities in which we operate. The importance of an ever clean, green and healthy environment
cannot be over-emphasised. The hotel collaborates with other partners e.g. Kenya Wildlife Services
(KWS) who are the hotel’s immediate neighbours in conserving the environment. The hotel boasts
of a wide variety of indigenous trees within its premises thus playing a key role in conservation. The
hotel also has a proper waste management policy in place.
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Interaction with Nature at Sunset Hotel

Employee welfare

The hotel has properly documented and approved Human resource instruments which
guide all the HR related matters including hiring and staff relations. The HR Manual
is the Primary Policy document in Management of the Sunset Hotel Human Resource.
The Manual acts as a reference document for the Hotel, and forms the basis upon
which the Hotel’s work culture and environment develops.

It guides the Hotel and employees of the Hotel on matters of policy and practice
The Manual incorporates provisions of relevant legislations which are applicable on
matters of Human Resource Management and Development and is largely aligned to
the Constitution and Employment Act and is periodically revised as and when
necessary. The hotel is an equal opportunity employer. The hotel is fully compliant
With Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA)

Market place practices-
Responsible competition practice.

The hotel embraces best commercial practices, ethical and International standards in

dealing with stakeholders.

Sunset hotel ensures responsible competition practices by operating within and

cultivating a corruption free environment, responsible political involvement, fair
xXX11
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competition and respect for competitors at all times.

b)  Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
The hotel ensures fairness in all the procurement processes by adhering to the
relevant procurement regulations and endeavours to pay the suppliers within the
stipulated time frames while maintaining clear, transparent, open communication
channels and mechanisms.

¢) © Responsible marketing and advertisement

Sunset hotel at all times applies and maintains ethical marketing practices by
cnsuring a level playing ground and being sensitive to the competitors at all times as
well as operating within healthy marketing principles.

d)  Product stewardship

All undertakings of the hotel are geared towards customer satisfaction. The hotel
maintains positive communication with both the internal and external customers and

has a robust feedback mechanism in place. This ultimately safeguards consumer
rights and interests in the long run.

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Our Sustainable approach towards sourcing and production helps us to create value for a wide group
of stakeholders from farmers to community groups to customers. Sunset Hotel continues to give
priority to the local communities and farmers living around our areas of operation where possible so
as to ensure economic independence. The Hotel occasionally hires local performers to entertain
guests through dance and music thus enhancing guest experience by exposing them to the diverse
range of local cultures and ethnic groups whilst economically empowering the local people. The
hotel is largely engaged in supporting education specifically by offering internships and attachment
to students and allowing the students to tour the facility as a way of gaining practical experience
especially for hospitality students.

Occasionally, the Hotel also supports some charitable causes and community initiatives. These take
many forms: financial, supply of foodstuffs or clothing, hosting of community events. Due to

financial constraints, the hotel did not make any cash donations during the year but was able to
donate firewood to children’s home.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statement for the year
ended June 30, 2022 which shows the state of Sunset Hotel Ltd affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company is provision of accommodation and conferencing
facilities.

Results : —
The results of the entity for the year ended June 30, 2022 are set out on pages 1- 43

Dividend
The directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the period.

Reserves

The Directors propose to carry forward the balance of accumulated losses amounting to
Kshs. 163,780,381.

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year to date of this report are set out on
page iv-vii in accordance with Regulation 2(b) of the Sunset Hotel Ltd Articles of Association.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Sunset Hotel Ltd in accordance with
Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.The Auditor General continues
in office in accordance with Section35 of the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Ordgy of the Board

(-
JohnKaria
Company Secretary
Kenya Development Corporation
P O Box 42013-00100
Nairobi
Date. 2G| 0412042
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EMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

ion 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
Lire the Board to prepare financial statements in respect of Sunset Hotel Limited, which give a true and
r view of the state of affairs of the Hotel at the end of the financial year/period and the operating results
"the Hotel for that year/period. The Companies Act 2015 requires the directors to ensure that the Hotel
:eps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
otel. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Hotel.

he Directors are responsible fot the preparation and presentation of the Hotel’s financial statements, which
ve a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Hotel for and as at the end of the financial year ended
1 June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management policies and
jsuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper
scounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
atity; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
resentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements,
hether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Hotel; (v) selecting and applying
ppropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

ircumstances.

“he Board of Directors accept responsibility for the Hotel’s financial statements, which have been prepared
ising appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
.onformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the PFM
Act and the State Corporations Act. The Directors confirm that the Hotel’s financial statements give a true
1nd fair view of the state of Hotel’s transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2022, and of the
Jotel’s financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting
-ecords maintained for the Hotel, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Hotel’s financial
statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Hotel will not remain a going concern
for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

Sunset Hotel’s financial statements were approved by the Board on ;LE \ Octl 2022 and signed on
its behalf by: )
Ch}istopher Huka Risper Chichole

Chairperson of the Board Accounting Officer
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Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunset Hotel Limited set out on
pages 1 to 43, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022,
and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and
Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022




actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Sunset Hotel Limited as at 30 June, 2022, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act, 2015
and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Non-Disclosure of Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

The statement of financial position reflects current liabilities totalling to Kshs.139,137,398
which exceeds current assets balance of Kshs.35,086,522 resulting to a negative working
capital of Kshs.104,050,876 which casts significant doubt on the Hotel's ability to continue
as a going concern. However, this material uncertainty to continue as a going concern
has not been disclosed in the financial statements.

In the circumstances, the financial statements have been prepared on the assumption
that the Hotel will continue to receive financial support from the Government and its
creditors.

2. Unsupported Loans from the Tourism Finance Corporation

The statement of financial position reflects non-current liabilities balances of
Kshs.54,828,994 and Kshs.2,500,000 in respect of Tourism Finance Corporation current
portion of loan and advance amount respectively. In addition, the statement also reflects
accrued loan principal and interest of Kshs.47,813,955 and Kshs.52,139,730 respectively
all totalling to Kshs.99,953,685 and payable to Tourism Development Corporation.
However, no loan agreement or application details were provided to confirm how the
loans were advanced.

In the circumstances, the existence and completeness of the loan balances amounting to
Kshs.157,282,679 could not be confirmed.

3. Trade and Other Receivables from Exchange Transactions
3.1 Unsupported Provision for Trade Debtors

The statement of financial position reflects an amount of Kshs.26,262,099 in respect of
trade and other receivables as disclosed in Note 16(a) to the financial statements, which
was net of provision for bad and doubtful debts of Kshs.4,089,349. However, Note 4(i) on
summary of significant accounting policies, trade and other receivables provides that,
receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value and an estimate is made for

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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parmanent staff for the last two (2) years, salaries and allowances of permanent
employees increased by Kshs.3,385987 or 242% from Kshs.1,394,640 to
Kahs 4,780,627 without any supporting documents or justification.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and occurrence of the salaries and allowances of
permanent employees of Kshs.4,780,627 could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Value of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and note 14 to the financial statements reflect property,
plant and equipment of Kshs.439,977,470 which includes unsupported work in progress
of Kshs.26,911,576 transferred to buildings and included in the revalued amount in
respect of buildings.

In addition, the revaluation report had a forced sale value, market value, mortgage value
and insurance value dated 5 August, 2022 and not 30 June, 2022, the date of the financial
statements, all of which are different. Management did not provide a support for the basis
or the valuation adopted in the financial statements.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIls). | am independent of the Sunset Hotel Limited Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of the previous year, several paragraphs were raised under the Report
on Financial Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources, and Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, the Management has not resolved the issues nor given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board templates.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Further,
Note 5(ii)(a) on significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty, provisions,
states that specifically, provision for bad debts was estimated at 1.23% of the total
budgeted revenue for the period and hence an expected provision for bad and doubtful
debtors of Kshs.641,936 (1.23% of Kshs.52,189,889).

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the disclosed provision for bad
debts in the year, amounting to Kshs.4,089,349 could not be confirmed.

3.2 Long Outstanding Trade and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects an amount of Kshs.26,262,099 in respect of
trade and other receivables, which as disclosed in Note 16(a) to the financial statements
is net of provisions for bad and doubtful receivables of Kshs.4,089,349. Included in the
balance are gross debts amounting to Kshs.27,900,211 owed by Government institutions
and which have been long outstanding.

In the circumstances, existence and recoverability of trade and other receivables balance
of Kshs.26,262,099 could not be confirmed.

4. Unsupported additions to Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.437,977,470, an increase of
Kshs.351,945,669 from last year's balance of Kshs.86,031,801. However, amounts of
Kshs.4,169,073 and 2,002,858 in respect of improvements to buildings and furniture and
fittings were not supported with bills of quantities for the renovations work done and
invoices for furniture and fittings respectively.

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the expenditure incurred on
additions to property, plant and equipment, all amounting to Kshs.6,171,931 could not be
confirmed.

5. Unsupported Share Capital

The statement of financial position reflects ordinary share capital amount of
Kshs.12,000,000 which comprise of ordinary share capital for Tourism Finance
Corporation and County Government of Kisumu of Kshs.11,450,000 and Kshs.550,000
respectively. However, no evidence was provided to confirm the County Government’s
subscription and shareholding.

In the circumstances, the ownership and accuracy of the share capital balance of
Kshs.550,000 could not be confirmed.

6. Unsupported Staff Costs

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects Kshs.26,020,476
in respect of administration costs as disclosed in Note 7(a) to the financial statements
which includes Kshs.8,869,663 relating to staff costs. Although the hotel and only one (1)

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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I PORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
NI SOURCES -

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Failure to Remit Statutory Deductions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial statements
reflects trade and other payables amount of Kshs.39,183,713. Included in the amount is
unremitted statutory deductions totalling to Kshs.26,553,086 relating to Value Added Tax
(VAT), of Kshs.12,641,332, Pay As You Earn (PAYE) of Kshs.7,775,456, Withholding
taxes Kshs.1,465,055 NSSF Kshs.4,568,529, NHIF Kshs.15,700, Catering Levy
Kshs.65,882 and Pension deductions of Kshs.21,132. Further, as disclosed in Note 24 to
the financial statements, the hotel has a contingent liability of Kshs.14,457,324 arising
from Notice and Distress for outstanding tax arrears by Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA),
while a contingent liability of Kshs.4,531,809 arising from penalties by NSSF in the
previous year crystallized during the year.

Failure to remit taxes and other statutory deductions continue to attract heavy penalties
to the hotel and worsens the precarious financial position of the Hotel.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
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procésses and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by the Companies Act, 2015, | report based on my audit, that:

I | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

ii. in my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by Sunset Hotel
Limited, so far as appears from the examination of those records; and,

ii. The Hotel's financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hotel's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
the going concern basis of accounting unless Management is aware of the intention to
liquidate the Hotel or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Hotel's financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

I'he audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Hotel's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

Report of the Auditor-General on Sunset Hotel Limited for the year ended 30 June, 2022
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fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Hotel's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hotel to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hotel to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA Na a ACBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

09 June, 2023
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I AR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

ATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

Note 2022 2021
_ Kshs Kshs
REVENUES
Sales/ :I'urnovér 6| (a) 59,308,372 50,159,565
TOTAL REVENUES ... 59,308,372 50,159,565
Cost of Sales 6 | (b) 15,773,129 10,550,904
GROSS PROFIT 43,535,243 39,608,661
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration Costs (a) 26,020,476 18,430,948
Selling and Distribution Costs 423,182 207,963
Depreciatlon of Property, plant and 14 2.197.378 2,046.329
_equipment
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 28,641,036 20,685,240
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 14,894,207 18,923,421
Finance Costs 10 5,699,076 8,836,187
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 11 | (b) 9,195,131 10,087,234
INCOME TAX EXPENSES/ (CREDIT) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 11 | (b) 9,195,131 10,087,234
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 12 15.33 16.81
| Dividend per share 13 -
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STATE‘:‘MENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

| Note 2022 2021
Kshs Kshs

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant ‘and equipment 14 437,977,470 86,031,801
Total Non-Current Assets 437,977,470 86,031,801
Current Assets mor, iy 4

| Inventories 15 370,594 212,997
Trade and other receivables 16 | (a) 26,262,099 22,741,868
Bank and cash balances 17 | (a) 8,453,829 5,762,295
Total Current Assets 35,086,522 28,717,160
Total Assets 473,063,992 114,748,961
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Ordinary share capital 18 12,000,000 12,000,000
Revaluation reserve 19 426,946,695 79,262,476
Retained earnings (163,780,381) (172,975,512)
Proposed dividends - *
Capital and Reserves 275,166,314 (81,713,036)
Non-Current Liabilities
Shareholders loan advanced 1,431,286 1,431,286
TFC Loans Principal balance 21 54,828,994 59,769,468
Advance from TFC 2,500,000 2,500,000
Total Non-Current Liabilities 58,760,280 63,700,754
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 39,183,713 43,447,108
Accrued Loan Principal 23 | (b) 47,813,955 42,873,481
Accrued Loan interest 23 | (b) 52,139,730 46,440,654
Total Current Liabilities 139,137,398 132,761,243
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 473,063,992 114,748,961

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 2o gof‘\g 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

ager /ﬁ ead of Finance
Risper Chichole

Risper Chichole

CPAK M/NO:8320

rman of the Board

Christopher Huka
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ATHMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Ordinary Revaluation Retained Total
share capital reserve earnings

_ Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
At July 1,2020 12,000,000 79,262,476 | (183,062,746) | (91,800,270)
Revaluation gain - - - -
Transfer of excess depreciation on i ) P
revaluation e
Deferred tax on excess depreciation - - - -
Capital/Development grants received 1 ) i L
during the year
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 10,087.234 10,087,234
At June 30,2021 12,000,000 79,262,476 | (172,975,512) | (81,713,036)
At July 1,2021 12,000,000 79,262,476 | (172,975,512) | (81,713,036)
Revaluation gain - 347,684,219 -| 347,684,219
Transfer of excess depreciation on i i ) P
revaluation
Deferred tax on excess depreciation - - - -
Capital/Development grants received i 1 . X
during the year
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 9,195,131 9,195,131
At June 30,2022 12,000,000 426,946,695 | (163,780,381) | 275,166,314

(O%]
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - 2022
ACTIVITIES 2 Kshs

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 23 | (a) 9,150,362
Interest received

2021
Kshs_
5,529,973

Interest paid

Taxation paid

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating

activities 23 | (a) 9,150,362 5,529,973

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14

(6,458,828) (809,145)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing (6,458,828)
activities i

(809,145)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan Proceeds & Borrowings 23 | (b)

Repayment of loans & borrowings

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing
activities

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

691,534 4,720,828
EQUIVALENTS B,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 23 | (o) 5,762,

Effects of foreign exchanges rate fluctuations 5

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF 453.829
THE YEAR ol i

1,041,467

5,762,295
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE
PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Original Actual Performance % age
Particulars Adjustments | Final Budget | Comparable ; . Remark
Budget Basis Difference | Variance
2021-
2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 2021-2022 2022
Revenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Sales 52,189,889 - 52,189,889 59,308,372 7,118,483 14% F
Other Income - - - - -
Total Revenues 52,189,889 - 52,189,889 59,308,372 7,118,483 14%
Cost of sales 8,836,968 - 8,836,968 15,773,129 -6,936,161 -78% U
Gross Profit 43,352,921 - 43,352,921 43,535,243 182,322 0% F
EXPENSES
ég::s‘““am" 28,325,322 5 28,325,322 | 26,020,476 2,304,846 8% F
ellsig vad 908,747 . 908,747 423,182 485,565 53% | F
distribution Costs
Deprecigtion 3,230,477 e 3230477 | 2,197,378 1,033,099 32% F
Charges
Takal Operavag 32,464,546 - 32,464,546 | 28,641,036 3,823,510 12%| F
expenses
Operating _ 4,005,832 ¢ F
Profit/(Loss) 10,888,375 10,888,375 14,894,207 ,005, 37%
Finance Costs 6,556,296 - 6,556,296 5,699,076 857,220 13% 8]
Prafih(Lost) belgre 4,332,079 . 4,332,079 9,195,131 4,863,052 112%
taxation
Income tax expenses } ) B B B . R
(credit)
Net Profit /(Loss) 4,332,079 " 4,332,079 9,195,131 4,863,052 112% F
after taxation

Key: U- Unfavorable
F- Favorable
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Explanatory notes: -

a)

b)

The hotel surpassed its revenue target by 14% against all odds. The hotel’s performance has
steadily been improving due to management’s concerted efforts to re-position the hotel. However,
the dilapidated state of the hotel remains the greatest impediment. The hotel’s performance has
been on a downward trend due to its poor state having been built 40 years ago and with no
meaningful refurbishment since then. If given a slight facelift, the hotel will easily bring back its
lost glory. It has immense potential given its very prime location. ™"

Cost of sales had a negative variance of 78% with this being mainly due to the high cost of inputs
especially food items and certainly partly due to the relatively higher sales recorded during the
period as compared to what was budgeted. The period saw an unprecedented hike in the cost of
most of the items yet the hotel could not pass the cost to its customers as well.

Administration costs were below the budgeted figure i.e., a positive variance of 8% due to cost
control measures put in place by the hotel.

Selling and distribution costs were equally within the budgeted figure with a positive variance of
53%. It had been envisaged that the hotel would carry out a lot of publicity after refurbishment,
which unfortunately did not take place during the period.

There was minimal capital expenditure in the period thus the favourable variance for
depreciation. This is a provision made in the books for depreciable assets. Notably a number of
assets also happen to be fully depreciated thus the reduction in depreciation. The hotel intends to
revalue all its assets in the near future.

Finance costs were within the budgeted figure with a positive variance of 13%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunset Hotel Limited was established and derives its authority and accountability from the Kenya
Companies Act (cap 486). It was established in 1976. It is 95.4% owned by the Government of
Kenya through Kenya Development Corporation under the Ministry of Treasury) effective 2™ July
2021 vial Legal Notice No.113 pursuant to the Kenya Development Coerporation Limited vesting
order, 2021 published by the Cabinet Secretary for National Planning and 4.6% by the County
Government of Kisumu. The hotel was previously owned by Tourism Finance Corporation under
the Ministry of Tourism up until then. The hotel is domiciled in Kenya and its principal activity is
provision of accommodation and conference facilities.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement
of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, impaired assets at their
estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in the process of applying the hotel’s accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the hotel.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting policies
adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
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a

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

a) Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year
ended 30 June 2022

Amendments to IAS 16
titled Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use (issued in May
2020)

| The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2022, prohibit a company from
deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the
company is preparing an asset for its intended use.
Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds
and related cost in profit or loss

e

['he amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022.
Early application is permitted.

Amendments to [AS 37
titled Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
(issued in May 2020)

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the
contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts. They are effective for
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations on or after 1 January 2022.

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022.
Early application is permitted

Amendment to IFRS 1 titled
Subsidiary as a First-time
Adopter

The amendment, applicable to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022, provides a subsidiary that
becomes a first-time adopter later than its parent with an
exemption relating to the measurement of its assets and
liabilities. The exemption does not apply to components
of equity.

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022.
Early application is permitted.

Amendment to IFRS 9 titled
Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Test
for De-recognition of
Financial Liabilities

The amendment, applicable to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022, to IFRS 9 clarifies the fees
that a company includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability.

The amendments are effective
for annual perieds beginning
on or after January 1, 2022.
Early application is permitted

Amendment to IAS 41 titled
Taxation in Fair Value
Measurements (issued in
May 2020 as part of the
Annual Improvements to
ERS Standards 2018-2020)

The amendment, applicable to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022, to IAS 41 removed the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring fair value. This amendment aligned the
requirements in 1AS 41 on fair value measurement with
those in other IFRS

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022,
Early application is permitted.

B
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The Directors have assessed the applicable standards and amendments. Based on their assessment of impact of
application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a significant impact on the company's financial

statements.

b) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year

ended 30 June 2022.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
(issued in May 2017)

The new standard, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after Ist Janpuary 2023, establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar
principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and
investment contracts with discretionary participation
features issued. The objective is to ensure that entities
provide relevant information in a way that faithfully
represents those contracts. The Company does not issue
insurance contracts.

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier application is permitted

Amendments to 1AS 1 titled
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(issued in January 2020)

The amendments, clarify a criterion in IAS 1 for
classifying a liability as non-current: the requirement for
an entity to have the right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier application is
permitted.

Amendments to 1AS 1 titled
Disclosure of Accounting
Policies (issued in February
2021)

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2023, require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier

permitted.

application is

1AS 12 — Income Taxes

IAS 12, "Income Taxes" implements a so-called
‘comprehensive balance sheet method' of accounting for
income taxes which recognizes both the current tax
consequences of transactions and events and the future
tax consequences of the future recovery or settlement of
the carrying amount of an entity's assets and liabilities.
Differences between the carrying amount and tax base of
assets and liabilities, and carried forward tax losses and
credits, are recognized, with limited exceptions, as
deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets, with the
latter also being subject to a 'probable profits' test.

The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January
1, 2023. Early adoption is
permitted.

IAS 8- Accounting Policies,
Errors and Estimates

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2023, introduce a definition of

The amendments are effective

for annual reporting periods

9
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IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
(issued in May 2017)

The new standard, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2023, establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar
principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and
investment contracts with discretionary participation
features issued. The objective is to ensure that entities

provide relevant information in a way that faithfully -l

represents those contracts. The Company does not issue
insurance contracts.

The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023.
Earlier application is permitted

T
1

L

‘accounting estimates’ and include other amendments to
TIAS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates.

beginning on or after January
1, 2023. Early adoption is
permitted.

The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their assessment of the potential
impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a significant impact on the company's financial

statements.

<)

Early adoption of standards

The Hotel did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in year 2021/2022.

10
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are set out below:

a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents

amounts receivable for services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.;

i) Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognized in the year in which the hotel
delivers products/services to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

i) Finance income comprises of interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in

securities, and it recognized in profit and loss on a time proportion basis using effective interest
rate method.

iii) Other income is recognized as it accrues.

b) In-kind contributions

These are donations made to the hotel in the form of actual goods and/or services rather than in
money or cash terms. These donations may include vehicles, equipment or personnel services.
Where the hotel includes such value in the statement of comprehensive income both as revenue
and as expense in equal opposite amounts; otherwise, the contribution is not recorded.

Property Plant and Equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Where re-measurement at re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset
category are re-valued through periodic valuations carried out by independent external valuers.

Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the
same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are charged to
profit or loss in the income statement. Land and Buildings are subsequently shown at market

value, based on valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent Depreciation for
Buildings.

11
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All other property Plant and Equipment is stated at historical cost less Depreciation.

Gains,and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are
recognized in profit or loss in the income statement.

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and cap1ta] work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates
mainly to the costs of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and othei€ivil works and
installations.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized in the income statement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value
over its estimated useful life as follows: -
The annual rates in use are:

a) No depreciation is charged on the Leasehold land

b) Building - 25%
c) Property, Plant & Machinery -12.5%
d) Furniture, Fittings and Equipment -12.5%
e) Motor Vehicle -25.0%
f) Computers -33.0%

Depreciation charge is recognized both in the year of asset purchase and in the year of asset
disposal on pro-rata basis.

Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the
carrying amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated
recoverable amount.

e) Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licenses, which are capitalized on the
basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortized over the estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the year that they are
available for use, usually over three years.

f) Amortization and impairment of intangible assets

12
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#mortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of computer
software of three years.

All computer software is reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an
intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an impairment

loss is recognized so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable
amount.

¢) Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or intaiigible assets not ready
to use- are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other

than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

g) Inventories
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The Costis determined by
first in, first out (FIFO) method. Inventories are held for sale as raw materials for kitchen

production supplies. Specific provisions are made for obsolete, slow moving and defective
inventories.

h) Turnover

Turnover represents amounts received and receivable for services provided net of government
taxes and levies.

i) Trade & other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are a classified as current asset. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.
Receivables are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for doubtful
Receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are written

13
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off when all reasonable steps to recover them have failed.

j) Taxation

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantinvely enacted, at the
reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current

income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and
not in the statement of financial performance.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current
income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations

in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences

can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
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“be utilized, except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in

the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at
various Commercial Banks at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of these
financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and

advances to authorized officers which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the
financial year.

1) Borrowing

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of
issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges, including premiums
payable of settlement or redemption are accounted for on accrual basis and are added to the
carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which
they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction of a project is capitalized as part of
the cost of the project.

m)Trade and other payables
15
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Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently which is measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be
paid in future in respect of goods and services supplied, whether billed to the hotel or not, less
any payments made to the suppliers.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
Liabilities if payment.is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. |

Payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Payables are
derecognised when extinguished.

n) Retirement benefit obligations
The company contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a
defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The company’s
obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and
is currently at Kshs.1080.00 per employee per month. A contributory pension scheme is also in
place with employer/employee contributions set at 10% of the employees’ basic pay.

o) Provision for staff leave pay

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are recognized as they accrue to the employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

p) Exchange rate differences
The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies
during the year/period are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Any
foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

q) Budget information
The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly on 30" June
2021. No subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget.
Any revisions if any are made in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate
authorities.
The hotel’s budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
16
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disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance,
whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the
financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes
adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under page 5 of these financial statements.

r) Comparatives

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes in the presentation in the
current year.

s) Subsequent events
Since the end of the year 2021/2022, no events have become known or have occurred
that may lead to significant changes to these financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including experience of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

1) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
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accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The company’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation

charges for its property, plant and equipment. The rates used are set out in (d) above.

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:
[ ]

The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts empﬂ);éd by the Hotel

The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes
° The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

@ Availability of funding to replace the assets

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

b) Revaluation of PPE

The company carries Land and buildings of PPE at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in the comprehensive income and revaluation reserves respectively.

¢)Recoverability of trade and other receivables

Management has made Judgment in estimating the amounts that may not be
recovered based on experience and efforts expended in the attempt to recover the
outstanding balances.

ii) Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
judgments in determining:
e The classification of assets into current and non-current
e Whether assets are impaired
a) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available; specifically, provision for bad debts which was estimated at 1.23% of the total
budgeted revenue for the period.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is
material

b) Contingent liabilities
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In the course of day to day running of the company’s affairs, the company is exposed to
contingent liabilities including public liability and legal cases. The status of these exposures
are evaluated by the management from time to time to ascertain the likelihood of the liabilities
crystalizing. Provisions are subsequently made in the financial statements where an obligation
has been established. Judgements are required in determining the amount of financial

obligation on the company.

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
6 (a) SALES/TURNOVER

Gross sales of Services
Less: taxes on gross sales
(Taxes :16% VAT,2% CLT)
Accommodation
Food-Casuals
Food-Residents
Drinks
Tobacco
Swimming
Laundry
Other Income
Total

(b) Cost of sales
Food
Beverage
Tobacco
Total

7 (a) ADMINISTRATION COSTS

Staff costs note(7b)
Directors & Secretarial emoluments
Electricity and water
Transportation, travelling and subsistence
Printing, stationery and photocopy
Insurance costs
Bank charges and commissions
Office and general supplies and services
Auditors’ remunerations

19

2022

Kshs.
69,983,879
(10,675,507)
59,308,372
8,776,680
30,153,297
5,509,407
10,272,542
19,660
1,816,532
65,754
2,694,500
59,308,372

11,536,469
4,219,493
17,167
15,773,129

8,869,663
432,400
5,350,689
359,600
733,413
41,845
64,015
64,299
300,000

2021

Kshs.
58,673,733
(8,514,168)
50,159,565
10,416,715
21,153,918
8,786,831
6,858,748
28,428
1,400,629
39,079
1,475,217
50,159,565

7,877,897
2,648,875
24,132
10,550,904

5,873,547
800,888
4,468,452
85,325
586,389
4,520
59,545
32,807
300,000
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Legal & Consultancy fees

Repairs and maintenance

Provision for Bad and doubtful debts

Other Operating Costs

Total

STAFF COSTS

Salaries and allowances of permanent employees

Wages of temporary employees

Compulsory national social sécurity schemes

Terminal dues/Pension Contributions

Leave Pay and gratuity provisions

Staff travel and other related expenses

Total

The average number of employees:

Permanent employees- Management

Permanent employees- Unionisable

Temporary and contract employees

Total

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Advertising, marketing and promotional expenses

Sales commission

Sales discounts and rebates

Other selling and distribution costs

Total

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

The operating profit /(loss) is arrived at after charging

/(crediting):

Staff cost (note7(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Provision for bad doubtful debts

Directors’ emoluments -Allowances
-Expenses

Secretarial Fees

Auditors’ remuneration- current year fees

Interest on loan

Land rent & rates

Total

FINANCE COSTS

20

319,200
4,068,794
521,892
4,894,667
26,020,476

4,780,627
776,268

TS, 785

126,792
2,970,191
8,869,663

nil
19
20

423,182
423,182

8,869,663
2,197,378
4,089,349
340,000
12,400
80,000
300,000
5,699,076
334,032
21,921,898

150,000
1,788,595
477,294
3,803,586
18,430,948

1,394,640
3,330,486
191,145
126,792
830,484
5,873,547

nil
15
16

207,963
207,963

5,873,547
2,046,333
477,294
560,000
140,888
100,000
300,000
8,836,187
334,032
18,668,281
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(a)

(b)
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Exchange losses on short term bank deposits
Exchange losses on cash and bank balances
Interest expenses on loans

Interest expenses on bank overdrafts

Total

INCOME TAX EXPENSES / (CREDIT)
Current taxation

Current taxation based on the adjusted profit for the year
at 30% '

Current tax: prior year under / (over) provision
Current year deferred tax charge

Prior year under — provision for deferred tax
Total

Reconciliation of tax expenses/ (credit) to the
Expected tax based on profit

Profit before taxation

Allowable B/forward Losses

Tax at applicable tax rate of 30%

Prior year under-provision

Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax effect of income not taxable

Tax effects of excess capital allowances over
Deferred tax prior year over - provision

Total

21

5,699,076

5,699,076

......

20195:151]
(83,209,419)

(74,014,288)

8,836,187

8,836,187

10,087,234
(93,296,653)

(83,209,419)
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax of Kshs.9,195,131 (2021:
Kshs. 10,087,234) by the average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 600,000
(2021: 600,000). There were not dilutive or potentially dilutive ordinary share as at the reporting date.

13. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of equity until they have been ratified
and declared at the relevant Annual General Meeting (AGM). No interim dividend was declared
and/or paid during the year neither is it expected that any dividends will be declared because of the
previous recurrent loses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LEASEHOLD wORkIN | PROPERTY FURNITURE | MOTOR
- PLANT
LAND BUILDING PROGRESS | & EQUIPMENT FITTING VEHICLE TOTAL
COST OR
YAluARICH Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 01-07-2021 15,000,000 75,000,000 26,911,576 12,204,591 16,595,317 295000 | 146 006484
Additions - 4_ 1 69,073 L 286,897 2,002,858 6,458,328
Transfers - 26,911,576 (26,911,576) B
Revaluation Increase 110,000,000 203,919,351 313.919.351
As at 30-06-2022 125,000,000 310,000,000 5 12,491,488 18,598,175 295000 | e 304663
DEPRECIATION
As at 01.07.2021 31,875,000 = 11,937,596 15,867,087 295,000 50,974,683
Charge for the year . 1,889,868 - 57,157 250,353 i 2,197,378
Write off on
revaluation (QE.764,868) (33,764,868)
As at 30-06-2022 " & it 11,994,753 16,117,440 295,000 28,407,193
NET BOOK VALUE
As at 30-6-2021 15,000,000 43,125,000 26,911,576 266,995 728,230 - 86,031,801
As at 30-6-2022 125,000,000 310,000,000 = 496,735 2,480,735 | w9140

Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

Cost or Normal annual
valuation Depreciation charge
Plant & machinery 11,923,281 1,439,725
Motor vehicle 295,000 73,750
Office equipment, furniture & equipment 15,473,652 1,896,494
27,691,933 3,409,969

23



SUNSET HOTEL LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the financial year ending 30 June 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

2021 PROPERTY FURNITURE
LEASEHOL | BUILDING WORK IN PLANT & MOTOR TOTAL
D LAND & VEHICLE
PROGRESS EQUIPMENT FITTING

COST OR
VALUATION Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 01-07-2020 | 15,000,000 | 75,000,000 26,911,576 | 12,021,529 15,969,234 | 295,000 145,197,339
Additions 5 - . 183,062 626,083 & 809,145
As at 30-06-2021 | 15,000,000 | 75,000,000 26,911,576 | 12,204,591 16,595,317 | 295,000 146,006,484
DEPRECIATION
As at 01.07.2020 & 30,000,000 g 11,904,821 15,728,529 | 295,000 57,928,350
Charge for the
year - 1,875,000 - 32,775 138,558 . 2,046,333
As at 30-06-2021 " 31,875,000 - 11,937,596 15,867,087 | 295,000 59,974,683
NET BOOK
VALUE
As at 30-6-2020 | 15,000,000 | 45,000,000 26,911,576 116,708 240,705 87,268,989
As at 30-6-2021 | 15,000,000 | 43,125,000 26,911,576 266,995 728,230 2 86,031,801

Work in progress relates to building renovation/extensions works for roof top bar and restaurant

which are yet to be completed or commissioned.

Property, plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated:

Cost or Normal annual
valuation Depreciation charge
Plant & machinery 11,517,806 1,439,725
Motor vehicle 295,000 73,750
Office equipment, furniture & equipment 15,171,950 1,896,494
26,984,756 3,409,969
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NOTE§ TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022 2021
Kshs. Kshs.
15 INVENTORIES
Foed store 124,946 88,842
Bar stock & Tobacco 245,648 124,155
TOTAL 370,594 212,997
16 | (a) | TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables (note b) 29,398,058 25,763,216
Deposits and prepayments 951,390 546,109
VAT recoverable - -
Staff receivables 2,000 -
Gross trade and other receivables 30,351,448 26,309,325
Provisions for Bad and doubtful receivables) (4,089,349) (3,567.457)
Net trade and other receivables 26,262,099 22,741,868
(b) | TRADE RECEIVABLES
Gross trade receivables 29,398,058 25,763,216
Other: Provisions for Bad and doubtful receivables) (4,089,349) (3,567,457)
Net trade and other receivables 25,308,709 22,195,759
At June 30, the ageing analysis of the
gross trade receivables were as follows:
Less than 30days 770,658 2,871,724
Between 30 and 60days 1,817,908 858,086
Between 61 and 90 days 1,346,819 1,253,245
- Between 91 and 120 days 1,110,582 -
Over 120 days 24,352,092 20,780,161
29,398,058 25,763,216
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2022 2021
Kshs. Kshs.
gl BANK AND CASH BALANCES
Cash at bank 8,332,102 | 5,679,805
Cash at hand 121,727 | 82,490
i - 8,453,829 | 5,762,295
(b) DETAILED ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at Hand:
Petty cash 20,377 33,840
Mpesa 100,950 42,150
Credit Cards 400 6,500
121,727 82,490
Cash at Bank (Current Accounts)
i National bank-A/c No.01020023525100 8,005,959 | 5,544,703
KCB- A/c No. 1108232736 326,143 135,102
i 8,332,102 | 5,679,805
The bulk of the cash was held at National bank the main banker
18. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
Kshs. Kshs.
Authorized, issued and fully paid
572,500 Ordinary Shares @ Kshs.20/= (KDC) 11,450,000 11,450,000
27,500 Ordinary Shares @ Kshs 20/= 550,000 550,000
(Kisumu County) 12,000,000 12,000,000

19. REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of the leasehold land and buildings as indicated in

the statement of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

i) These reserves shown in the Statement of changes in Equity arose due to valuation of the
hotels building and land in the current year 2022 subsequent to the initial revaluation carried

ii)

iii) On the current revaluation the values came to Kshs.310,000,000 for land and

20.

out in 2004.

Land arid building were initially taken at a value of Kshs. 178,013 and 10,559,511

respectively. However, on the initial revaluation, the values came to Kshs. 75,000,000 for
building and 15,000,000 for leasehold land. This therefore resulted in reserves of Kshs.
64,440,489 for building and 14,821,987 for leasehold land respectively. A total of Kshs.

79,262,476.

Kshs.125,000,000 for building with Net book values of Kshs.15,000,000 and Kshs.43,125,000
respectively. This therefore resulted in total reserves of Kshs.309,821,987 for land and

Kshs.117,124,708 for building. A total of Kshs.426,946,695.

RETAINED EARNINGS

The retained earnings represent amounts available for distribution to the hotel’s shareholders.
Undistributed retained earnings if any are utilized to finance the hotel’s activities. However, the

hotel has retained losses as at date.

21. BORROWINGS
Particulars o Azl
Kshs Kshs
Balance at beginning of the year 59,769,468 64,193,108
External borrowings during the year = 2
Domestic borrowings during the year - -
Repayments of external borrowings during the year . P
Repayments of domestic borrowings during the year (4,940,474) (4,423,640)
Balance at end of the year 54,828,994 59,769,468
Less: Amounts due within one year (current portion) (4,007,888) (4,423,640)
Amounts due after one year (non-current portion) 50,821,106 55,345,828
Accrued Loan Principal (current portion) 47,813,955 42,873,481
Accrued Loan Interest (current portion) 52,139,730 46,440,654
Total loan and Accrued Interest 150,774,791 144,659,963
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a

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The abové borrowing is from TFC, one of the shareholders at an interest rate of 11%, with the

respective loans being as follows:

Particulars Loan 1 Loan 2 loan 4 Loan 5 Loan 6 Loan 7 TOTAL
Balance B/Forward | 14,092,760 | 10,004,022 | 1,982,732 | 932,586 28,086,267 | 4,671,101 | 64,193,108
Additions - = = o "
Repayment . . - (932,586) | (4,007,888) N (4,940,474)
Totals 14,092,760 | 10,004,022 | 1,982,732 B 24,078,379 | 4,671,101 54,828,994
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Particulars 2022 2021
Kshs Kshs
Trade Creditors 10,035,899 10,386,569
Value Added Tax 12,641,332 12,740,358 |
CLY 65,882 83,299
Deposits Payable 670,928 670,928
Payroll Control 259,568
PAY.E 7,775,456 15,706,356
| N.S.SF 36,720 35,742
NSSF Arrears 4,531,809 -
N.H.LF 15,700 11,900
Pension 21,132 21,132
Accrued Expenses-Audit Fees 1,200,000
-Directors fees 723,800 1,923,800 2,070,172
Withholding Tax 1,465,055 1,461,084
39,183,713 43,447,108

Included in Trade Creditors above is Kshs.4,736,000 being outstanding audit fee owed to the

Kenya National Audit Office.
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
23. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

2022 2021
23 | (a) | Reconciliation of operating profit/ (loss) Kshs. Kshs.
to cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Operating profit/(loss) 9,195,131 10,087,234
Depreciation 2,197,378 2,046,333
Interest Ch.arged 5-:8'5'39,0?6 8,836,187
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital 17,091,585 20,969,754
changes
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (157,597) (126,273)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (3,520,231) (8,086,794)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (4,263,395) (7,226,?1.4)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 9,150,362 5,529,973
(b) | Analysis of changes in loans
Balance at beginning of the year 59,769,468 64,193,108
Receipts during the year E =
Repayments during the year (4,940,474) (4,423,640)
Repayments of previous year’s accrued interest - s
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses G 8
Accrued interest 52,139,730 46,440,654
Accrued Principal 47,813,955 42 873,481
Balance at end of the year 154,782,679 149,083,603
(¢) | Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank 8,332,102 5,679,805
Cash in hand 121,727 82,490
Balance at end of the year 8,453,829 5,762,295
PROVISIONS

There were no accrued leave days as at close of the period under review thus no provision for

leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Related party transactions

The hotel has two shareholders namely Tourism Finance Corporation (TFC) and Kisumu
County Government. Tourism Finance corporation owns 95% of Sunset Hotel Limited
shareholding while Kisumu County owns 5%.

Sales and Purchases

e

During the year, the hotel provided accommodation, conference and catering services to
the Kisumu County Government while Kenya Development Corporation did not hold
any business with the hotel in the financial year. However, all transactions between the

parties are strictly at arm’s length.

Sunset Hotel incurred Land rent & rates amounting to Kshs. 334,029 for land leased to
the hotel for 99 Years by Kisumu County Government; this was fully paid by the hotel.

Transactions with related parties

2022 2021
Kshs Kshs

a) Loans received from the shareholders
Loans from TFC Nil Nil
Loans from Kisumu County Government Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

b) Key management compensation
Directors’ emoluments 352,400 700,888
Compensation to key management 1,919,568 1,394,640
Total 2,271,968 2,095,528
24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2022 2021
Kshs Kshs
NSSF Penalties - 4,531,809
KRA Penalties 14,457,324 28,980,240
Total 14,457,324 33,512,049
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Explanatory notes:

At close of previous year, the hotel had NSSF arrears totaling to Khs.2,244,940. The hotel was
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

able to settle the principal amount. However, this had since attracted a penalty of
Kshs.4,531,809 as demanded by NSSF. Negotiations to have the penalty waived was
unfortunately not successful thus crystalizing the NSSF contmgency A payment plan has

since been agreed upon and effected. .

The hotel has since entered into a payment agreement with KRA for the tax arrears as shown
in the statements; the hotel continues to honor the payment plan and is up to date with the
current taxes. However, KRA has levied penalties of the above amount as at the date of these
statements. The hotel hopes to apply for waiver of the penalties once the principal is cleared.
The hotel remains optimistic that the penalties will be waived in the long run.

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimize the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The company’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk
The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to

pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by
the company’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

Total Fu.lly Past due Impaired
Performing
30-Jun-22 " Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Trade receivables 29,398,058 3,935,384 21,643,272 3,819,401
Due from related parties - - - -
Bank balances 8,453,829 8,453,829
Total 37,851,887 12,389,213 21,643,272 3,819,401

The amount that best represents the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June
2021 is as shown below:

Fully :
Total Performing Past due Impaired
30-Jun-21 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Trade receivables 25,763,216 4,983,055 17,212,704 3,567,457
Due from related parties - - - -
Bank balances 5,762,295 5,762,295 - -
Total 31,525,511 10,745,350 17,212,704 3,567,457

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognized in the financial statements is
considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from county
governments.
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The board of directors sets the company’s credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

b) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity’s directors, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash
flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

besy thaal Between Over 3 Total
month
1- 3 months months

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2022:
Trade payables 1,560,866 - 8,475,033 10,035,899
Current portion borrowings - - 99,953,685 99,953,685
Provisions - - - -
Deferred income - - - -
Employee benefit obligation ) - -
Total 1,560,866 B 108,428,718 109,989,584

Less than 1 Between Over 3

month 1- 3 months months Toul
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 30 June 2021:
Trade payables 783,748 136,894 9,447,926 10,368,568
Current portion borrowings - - 89,314,134 89,314,134
Provisions - - 1,043,227 1,043,227
Deferred income - - - 0
Employee benefit obligation 21.132 300,000 321.132
Total 804,880 436,894 99,805,287 101,047,061
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

c) Market risk
The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income of"the Value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
i) Foreign exchange risk

The company does not undertake any major transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
Therefore, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations are minimal. Any Foreign currency
transactions during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at Rates ruling at the
transaction date. The resulting differences from conversion and Translation are dealt with
in the Profit and Loss Statement in the year in which they arise.

ii) Interest rate risk
This is the risk that the entity’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of
changes in interest rate levels. The company’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.
This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure
arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company’s deposits.
To mitigate this risk, the hotel tries to bank and only deal with banks/institutions that are
well established and offer favorable interest rates.
Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities
a) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

[FRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. CURRENCY
The financial statement is presented in Kenya shillings. (Kshs.)

27. EVENTS AFTER CLOSING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting period

28. INCORPORATION

The hotel is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act and is domiciled in
Kenya.

36



LE
195U [ g Jou pue paysod Buiaq $£7°L80°01 “SUSH
poajopd [BISUSD) | 10 yiyoid & yam sppo [re isureSe pasoidu
3uro3-uQ Apred | AUBIUNONDY | fnpo1d moraal opun Ieak 9y 10}
soueuiopad s, [o30y oy} ‘Arenuod o) uQ

U] Z1SSL6°TLI'SYSY 01 Bul[elo) SSuruIe? paurejal
dApeSou poje[nuNOde pey pue yE7L80°01SUSH _
01 SuIe10) JIO1JAP B $I09[JAI AWOOUT dAISUY21dtIod
130 pue jyoid Jo JuowRleS A} Jey) pIjeIs sem 1]

0I3dUu0)) SUIoL)
0] pAjEPY AUIelIddu() [BLIJEJA PIsOSsIpu) Z |

"201JJO }IPNY [eUONEN BAUSY SB 0] palIdjal SI
[BISUSN) IOUPNY Y} JO 20LFO Y3 pue papraoid sey
ore[dwa) oY) Jeym [IIM JUIJSISTOD JOU SEM SIUSUO0D
JO 9[qe} Jopun Suuequinu dy ] ‘paxmbaz se Surpeay m

qns senianoe [edouud Yy 1opun oAn2[qo 2100
"QUOP I9M SUOTJOIII0D Aressooou oy ], | PUB JUSWAE)S uoIssIuu pue UOIsiA S)I JO Areuruumns
2/ paA[osSY p—— B OAI3 jOU pIpP [910( 9} Jeyl PpoAldsqo sem 1]
SJUIWIIBIS
[eroueUl] 94} Ul SAINSO[SI(] PUE UONBIUISAIJ 1
anssi
A1) IA[0SAL
dured J 03 uos.ad : "ON
i, smejs | yurod [ed0y SJUIUITIO0) JUIITBULIA] [e13Ud5) 10J1PNY WOAJ SUOJEAIISGOANSS] | JY

"PAA[0S2I 2q 0} pa1oadxa aIe sanssI ) YoIym [Iim SWRI) SW) PAJRIOOSSE PUB SINSST SNOLIBA 3Y} SAJOSII 0} suoszod

[290] PIBUIWOU S[210Y 34 [Z0Z/0Z0T JO 1oda1 JeIp S JOJIPNE 3y} Ul Pastel Sem jeym 1od Se 9I0J2Io) dIe SINSSI oY) ‘SJUIDE)S
asat Surredaid Jo 21ep 91 18 SB PaAIRda1 U2aq j0u pey Hoda1 Jipne [Z0Z/070T UL "SI0Npne Ay} 03 papiaoid aIom Jey} SJUSUIUIOD
JuouIoSeurw 2Y) pUB SJUWRLIS S 18ak snoiaaid 9y UO [eISUSD) JOPPNY A Aq PIsIeI sanss! Jo Aretuuuns 3y ST 3uIMO[[0F YL

SNOLLVANAWNODTY ¥OLIANY 40 d1 MOTTI0A NO SSHIDOUd T XIANAddY

7707 dunf (€ SUIpud JBdA [RDUEBUL Y} 10
sjuowdIE]S [eloueul ] pue spioday [enuuy
JALINIT TALOH LASNAS

L1




8¢

Sjunowre sueo| oy} JO uonIod jualmd
oy Apros ST (%L9)SEIPIE68'SUSA
‘EPTI9LTETSUSA

jo  sommiqery  juemmo 9y JO

2 "pojeWIISAIOpUN
q jouued renusjod s [9107
oﬁ "uonedo] oIdorens A1 ) UQAI3
210W 99UO0 2ANNRdWO0 JW0I3q 03 [9107
oyl o[qeud AUrenad [[i4 jey) pue duop
aq [ JuowsIqINJal oY) Jey) onsrundo
ole oA\ "o8els padueApE UE JB S )1 pue
POATASI U99q Sey Bpuade oy} ‘paurejuod
Ajqeuosear  ueaq  Suiaey  orwepued
oy um  ‘Ioadmop  orwepued 6]
-PIAO)) 9U} JO 12SUO Y} Aq UMOP PamOIs
Ajpjeunpiojun sem S} NG SUONBAOUDI
10 AKem oaaed 03 sem  SIYL610T
ul juepunper jes [[e Sule[oep 3Fureq
soIfojens [ons JO QU0 [jm SIIMSEIW
punorewn) ouWIOs UNe) JOUIS  Sey
[910Y 9 ‘@AIssaiduwrun sem ouewLIojId
snotaaid s [oj0y oY) eyl oni) S} YA

-pauodal
Asnoraaad 9/ °790°€81 "SYSI] JO SBUTUIED
paurejal aAjESoU WOl yuawaAoldun ue

Aqrenba ST Z16°SL6°TL1 ™SS JO s3utuIed
pourejol 2Ane3au Y] paeIs Se JOYIp

*SI0}IP3ID S)1 PUE JUSWIIIAOD)
o woiy poddns [eroueuly 9AI0I [ [30Y 31} 184}
vonduwmsse Y} uo paredord U9aq SABY SJUIWISIEIS
[RIOUBUL} A} ‘OOUBISWNOID Oy} IOPU[] 'SIUSWIIEIS
[PIOUBUL} 27} Ul PISO[ISIp 2q 0} dAe[ uonisod
[eroueurj snoueoalid d[qeNsopun A SIIAI
01 juowedeuwew oy £q ooejd ur nd somseow
SuneSnru  Aue pue 0[S JO  ANI[IqRUIEISNS
0] UONE[dI Ul AJUTelooun [eLojetl SIY) “ISAIMOH

“w19ou09 U103 B S8 9NUIIU0D
o1 Aupiqe s Auedwoo 2y} uo 3qnop o TuSIs
1580 AR [OIYM ‘AJUTElIa0UN [ELISJet B JO 90UD)SIXd
oY) 21eoIpUl SUORIPUOD ISAYL “€80°YY0 Y01 SUS
jo junowe we Aq  (Q9ILILBTSUSA O}
SuI[e)0] S1OSSE JULIND S)1 SPIAIXD €HT [9LTEL SUSH
0] Surejol SONIIQeI] JUALMD 9y} ‘UORIppE

7707 dung (¢ SUIpud Iedk [eloueuly 3y} 10
SJUa U] [BIDURUL] puE spioday] enuuy

AALINIT TALOH LASNAS

Il



6¢

€20C

aunf 0¢ |

3uro3-uQ

Ia8eueN
[e12U2D)

oI SUB[] "9ATIOE B [OIym G UBO[ PUB ¢
ueo] wody wede 1opud] oy Aq papuadsns
Suroq Ioyye Js10ul FUIMIOOR A[JULLIND JoU
woy) JO Jsoul Ypim Jopjoyareys Jofew oy
woIj oI Sueo| Y} [[V 'Pajels A[}0a1100

se sueo] Jo 2[dnoo © sey [930Y oYL,

[ediounid ueo| paniode Jo uoniod JuaLmd Y3 ST 1Y)
YN pSL00L €9 'SYSY 01 Bulfelol uoneiodiod
souBUI{ WSLNOJ] WOIX Sueo| jo uoniod UM
-uou 2y} syopgel uonisod [elOUBUY JO JUSWIANE)S
oy ‘pamodar Kjsnomaoid se jeyy pajou sem 3]

uonerodio)
souemiy wsuno), wogy ugo] pajioddnsun

‘pIemIO]
Sul08 [e10y oy} 10] pudn pood e Sl
yorym Suronpal A[JUSISISUOD 2T SINT[IQE]]
UoLIND Y I[YM MOIS 0} 2NUNU0d
sjesse juaumo Ayl A[qeiou  ‘sanIIqer|
paje[al UBO[ Ay} 10] dABS 'SI ApPULLMO
11 JeyMm wody uonisod [eroueul s, (2104 313
aaoxdum [[im s)00q oY) ul pajerodioou Ji
UOTyM SON[eA JOM)IBW JUSLIND I} UTBLId0sE
01 Surp[ing pue pue| AJurew s)asse S} Jo
uonen[eadl Jupyelapun osfe si [2104 YL

‘[eop 1e213 ®
anoxdur 01 9[qe 2q pnoys uonisod 1224ys
ooue[Rq Y} IRyl YIM pUR SISP[OYIEYS
oy Aq poseprsuod Sureq s1 Aymbe 03
palIaAtod syunowre 2y Sutaey jo uondo
ay [, "Iopjoyareys Jofew at (D1 03 pamo

7707 dung (€ SUIpua IBaA [elouLuly 34} 10
SJUAWIA)B)S [eIoURUL] PUE s}I0ddy [enuuy

AALIATT TALOH LASNAS




oy

£20C
aunf 0t

Buro3-uQ

IoBeUe
[eIoUan)

(]
"pauTe)qoO S}1 SB UOOS SB WONBIIJLIOA JOJ
J1 [TEAE [[IM PUB NWNSTY] JO JUSUWIISA0D)
Ajuno)) oY Woij 9JedJII0 dIeys Y}
10J pajsenbar 2ouls sey JuSWAFeurW oY |

"POULIJUOD
3q j0u PMOd [ZOT duUn( Of 38 Se 000°0SSSYSH JO
£junon) nwmsry Jopun [eyded areys dy) Jo AIpiea
pue Aoemooe ‘sseusjoidwiod ayl ‘Apuenbesuo)

‘pop1ao1d Jou sem NWMSTY 10] 2JeOPNID
oreys oyl (000°0SS'SUSM e} “OT'SUSH@
soreys Areurpio (0S'L7) Auno) numsry pue
000°0SH T1'SYSY [EI0} 0T 'SUSH@) soreys Areurpio
00SZLS) uoneiodio)) doueur] wWSLNO], 10§ Teded
oreys Areurpio jo 3oadsar ur (00°000°CI'SUSI
JO jUnouUre UE J09[JAI JUSWIjES [EIOURUY ST

000°0SS"SYSY JO $3)edYRI2) daeyg papiaoadup

_ "MOTAJI SIOJIPNE 0] POPIRMIO]
2IoM SUBO[ 9AT}0adSa1 91} 10 SYUSWIDNE]S
S[IYMUBRJA "U2103 dTe AU} Se U0OS Se
UONEDIJLIAA 10] WIAY) [[BAR [[IM PUE IOpUS]
oy woxy s)uswWadISe Ueo] Y3 Jo s21doo

© 10} paisanbor sey juowaSeuew oY |

*}SQI9)Ul JO UOHB[NUMOIJE
I9YJINJ PIOAE 0 Se 0s AJInba ojur
POLISATOD SURO] 9} dARY 0} AeAISpUN

"PULILFUOD 2q 10U P[NOJ [Z(T dunf

0€ 18 Se $E1°E06°1L'SUsH Jo uoneiodio) Adueul]
WSuNOJ, 0} Jnp Sd0UE[eq UO[ dY} JOo Ademooe
pue Auprea ‘ssoudjoidwioo oy  ‘Apuenbasuo)

*1S9I2]UT JO UOTB[NUWINIOR PANUTIUOD 3} 20UdY
pue sueo| oy} SUIIIAISS U33q JOU SeY [230Y 2} “OS[Y
JuowaaiSe ueo] £q pepoddns j0u EI°C06 1L SYSHA

Jo ooue[Rq  URO| Surpue)sino Buiaeo|
(Ajoamoedsar  1OI°IL9'y  PUE  000°000°0€™SUSZ
jo L pue 9 uweo] DIOITLYYESUSH

10] uoneiodio) 90UEUI] WSLMOJ WO JUIWS0ITe
ueo] poplaoid o104 YL YSY°OFY O SUSA
0} SuI[R)0} JSPISJUT PONIOOE PUR [8H €L TH SUSH JO

7707 2ung (¢ Surpud Jeak [eroueuly 3Y) 104
sjuduIdR}S [RdUEUI pue spi0day [enuuy

AALINIT TALOH LASNAS




Iy

gu03-uQ

3ut03uQ

Io3euey
[eIauan)
JUBIUNOODY

[[M STy} 2Imjnj Iesu U} Ul PajeAoual
oq [ [0y oy jeqy padoy oS
$] "pewes st junowre [edround oy} I1oye
Amiqrssod yeyy Jo uoneorpur SUIALZ VI
WM puB VY [PLM Sures dy) passnosip
Sulaey ‘perespd s1 junowe [edouud
oyl 2ouo seneuad pojeMUNOdE Y}
Jo 1oAtem 10J Ajdde 03 spuajul [9304 YT

ASSN i ooe[d
ur ospe st ueld juowided v j07e e
0} 21BOLIIIR0 2ouel[dwoo JUBA[RI 3 Sty
(o107 oy uerjduioo xey sI [2joy 9y} pue
ued 2y} Jopun SIedalre U} SpIemol Vi
0} pred u2aq oouls sey 0L TLI9SUSH
J0 210} B ‘aouejsul 1o, ‘ueld juawAed ay)
I0UOY O} SeNUIUOd [3)0Y 3y} pue saIpoq
oAnoadsar oy m  uejdjuourdaide
juowAed ojul paIojud Q0uls
sey [9J0Y oy] ‘sIeale pjo oy} Sulpes
Apualino SI pue suononpap AIojmjels
o) e v dep 03 dn mou ST [310(
2y} ‘1oAamOH ‘suonedijqo A10nje)s ay) Jo
awos uo puryeq Sey 03 [930Y 2y} upyew
SNy} SMO[J YSeO S)I UO [[0] B UE) ey
51500 Sunesado a8ny ym pajdnod [3j0Y
o) jo ooueunropad 1ood snorard ayp

PaULIJUOD

2q j0u p[nod dunf O 18 e 01°Lyy ¥ 'SUSH

Jo souefeq sa[qeAed 1ayjo pue apen

a1 Jo ssau)a[dwod pue AoeInode ‘KIpIeA o],

"0PT'086°8TUS
jo  vyd Aq smoume xe]  Sulpuelsino
10y SSoWSIQ JO 9OHON PUB  608°1ESHSUSH
01 Sununoure soneuad JSSN  WOL Bursue
6v0°TIS €E'SYSY JO AN[Iqel] JUa3UNU0d € PasO[ISIp
Sey SJUSWIAlE)S [RIOUBUY AU} Ul GT 9jou Idpun
P10y oy ‘royung -ouy pue sopeusd Fumoeme
poNUIUOD UONONPIp AIOIjE)S JO 0UBHIWAL UON
‘K[eAnpoadsar xey SUIp[OYHIM PIpIUdIUN pue wres
nok se AeJ papIwaIun Xe) pappe dN[eA pIpTwIun
Sutoq  $80‘19F1'SUSY  PUB  9GE90L'STSUS
pue  9GEOPLTISUS ST 8OI°LPY EY'SUSH
Jo am3y oy ul papnjoul “ISAMOH "sajqeded
o0 pue open Iapun §O[Lpyy ey SUSH JO oUeEq
g spapgel uopisod [eroueuy JO JUSWAEIS YL

sajqeded 1373 pue IpeiL

7707 dung (€ SUIPUD IBdA [edURUY 97} 10
§)uA ARG [BIUERUI ] pue spioday] [gnuuy

AALIATT TALOH LASNAS

Il



(44

Swo3-uQ

3ui03-uQ

IaBeueN
2ELE
DAULIUN0OIY

aIE [OIYM JO JSOU BUO] IO BUIpULISINO
U09Q SABY SIUNOUIER Y} JO WIS “ISAIMOH

‘Sunayrew pajedie; ySnoIy) auop

2Q 0] SANUNUOD PUB JUOP 24 [[IMm STY} *3sEq
Jowoysno s Surpuedxos pue no Juroue[eq

I 0 Aem e puij 0 spaau isnf [230y a4 L

_ QU Uo
pue [[om Aed os[e sanpu JUSWILLIOAO0T ma) B
‘Ked Ajremuoaa Aoty ‘Aed 01 Suo| oxey Aoy se
yonwi Se pue pajewl}saIapun 3q Os[e Jouted
SONIUS JUSTILIAA0S WOy 195 oM Je} yoddns
o) ‘IOASMO}] 'SPOUEJSWINDIIO [BWLIOU Jopun
2q pjnOM 2sBD oY) SE JudtAed-uou Jo Jsu
a2y} Jsurede 21eSHIW 0) SANUS JUSUILIDA0T
wouiy juswAed juoxydn 128 03 ojqissodwr 0}
as0]o os[e s3] “sioysews Surked sood A19A Sre
A[o1RUNIIOJUN OYM SINTUD JUSUILISAOT WOl
AJ)Sow SNUSARI S)I SIALIOP A[ejeunpiojun
Amus JuswIoA03 € Suteq [210Y

_ay ], ‘Aeme paysim aq },ued [orgm Ajifeal

© S1 SJULWUIAA03 AJunod AJ[eroadsa sannud
JusunaA03 Aq juswAed-uou Jo anssi AL,

"PIUWLIIJUOD 3]
Jou p[noo dunf (¢ Je Se 981, TTSUSA O 3u1felo}
J0UB[Eq SO[QEAIROAI IdYJ0 pue 9peln JO Aypiea
pue ssoud)odwiod ‘Aoemooe Jy) ‘Apuenbasuo)

'PAULITJUOD 2 JOU P[NOd AJUSLOLNS SH ‘opeut
u9aq SBY £GH*£9G E'SUSY JO $199P [MIQNOP PUE peq
10] uwoisiAold & YSnoyi[y "SUONMHSUI JUSUIUISAOY)
£q pomo  QITTSHETSUS 01 Supunowe
§1qQ9p OIe SO[qEAI201 Ul PApNIOU] LSy LIS ESUSH
01 Surejo) S9[qeATIR0l [npqunop pue
peq 10y suorsiaoid JO 19U ST YOTM 898’ YL TTSUSY
0} Surejo)  doueRq SO[qEAIS0al IO
pue opesj s)pd[al uonisod [eloUBUY JO JUSUISEIS
oy ‘papoder Ajsnoiaaid se Je} pIAlesqo Sem i

SO[qEAIIY JIYI(Q PUE IPBIL

. -pouad 1o1107s A[oATIE[RI
e Ul SIede 3y} Ied[d 01 [9304 =)
Surjqeus snyy Ayiqeygord oY) UOISUAXD
£q pue senuaAal S} MoI3 [210Y A4} diay

7707 dunf (€ SUIpud JedA erouruly 9y} 10 :
sjuoW)E)S [pouRUl] pue spioday] [enuuy

AALIATT TALOH LASNAS

11



{
preog 2y} JO UBULIEYD

1374

, Io3euBy ﬁﬂmao\Qx

e/u

PaAJ0SaY

JUBIUNODDY

“MI1AD1 10J
Po[IBA® UOIIBIUSWINOOP JUBAD[DI Y], "21BINDIE
pue ajo[dwod S1 G6ZZ9L S 'SYSY JO 2due[eq
juojealnba yseo pue yYsed 2yl ‘aI0JaIAY]
‘Aep SuIMO[[0} 2} JUNOYOE Yueq S,[310Y 27}
0] P2199]Jal Inq aunf ,,0€ uo Bs1A Aq pred sem
JeyM ST 00S‘9'sYsy JO junowre SpIed JIpal)
oy} ‘osimayIT ‘Aep SuImO[jo] a1 ueq aYy)
e s1o9[JaI Ajjensn uo1od[[0d s Aep 3Y) pue
yueq ay) 01 A[Ioaip paxul| st {1 BSAJ-N YL
"ULIOU Y] SI S A[nf [ uo Aep SuIMO[[0] 33
peloagje sem Yueq oY) 0} I9JSuBI) [BnIOR A}
oIyM JO aunf o€ Uo [[13 ays 03 pred junoure
o S 0S1°ZH'SYSY Jo doue[eq esadjy ayL

"PAULIIFUOD 2q 10U P[nOd dunf ()¢ 12
e ()S9°gH"SYSY JO dour[eq Yseo Y Jo ssauduwiod
pue Aoemooe  ‘Aupiea Ay “Apuenbasuo)
‘2ouspiAe  Amuowmoop Sunioddns  Aue Aq

pauoddns jou (0G°9'SYSY JO UONDI[[0D pIed IIPAId |

pue (S[‘Zy'SUsy JO 20UB[Rq BSSJ-]A SEM 2dUB[Eq
oY) Ul Popnjoul ‘I9ASMO}] ’S90UEB[Eq [SEd pue
JUeq IOPUN GATTIL GSYUSY JO ddUB[Eq B Pajod]jal
uonisod [eIOUBRULY JO JUSWIAILIS JBY) PIAIISQO SBM ]

saougeq Yse) pue yueq

‘apIs sennud 2And2dsal ay) woy yoen

01 Ases 11 Suryew snyy aurjuo pajiy Ajjenbs s
LVA PUue SIJALI B1A opew ae sjuowied jey)
UOAIS PAZIUNUIUI 192q SBY YSLI STy} A|Juaim))
"V Aq juewiked [V A Jo uoneznisip
a21030q spowiad 10] (VA pepiwaIun Ajqejou

7707 dung (€ Surpud 1eak [ URUL Y3 10
Sjua RIS [BOURUI] pue sproday [enuuy

JALIANIT TALOH LASNAS




